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STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION
This is an appeal as of right vader MCR 7.203(A)1) from a final order of the Wayne
County Cireuit Court (Fudge Robert J. Colombo, Jt.) entersd on February 26, 1999, which

dismissed the First Amended Complaint herein for the reasons stated in the comrt’s beach opinion

delivered at a hearing on February 12, 1999,

i
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STA’EMT OF QUESTIONS PRESENTED

The First Amended Complaint alleges that the defendant tobacco companies, ﬁeir joint
public relations and so-called “rssearch” organizations, and their distributors engaged in unfair
business practices and a scheme to defraud conceming'cigmﬁe safety, and anticompetative
suppression of safer nicotine products, in violation of the Michizan Antitrust Reform Act
(MARA), the Michigan Consumer Frotection Act (MCPA), the Michigan Pricing and Advertising
Act (MPAA), and commpon law prohibidons agamst frand (both misrepresentation and
concealment), breach of special duty, conspiracy, and unjust cnrichment.  The plaintiffs ars
mmitiemployer health trust funds (the “Funds”™), which pay for 1;163.1?]1 benefits to union members,
fetirees, and their farnilies using funds collected and connibu;ed pursuant to collective bargaining
agreements, Defendants’” misconduct injured the Funds - intentionally and foreseeably -- by
imnpairing the Funds’ ability to take steps to reduce their costs of treating smoking-related diseases
through smoking-cessation programs and other measares, dud by increasing the incidence of
smoking among those whose health care is paid for by the Funds. The trial court entered summary
disposition dism:issiﬁg alt claims as a matter of law. Under ,theéc circumstances: |

1. Should the Fuands® claims (under MARA, MC?A, MPAA, and the common law)
be dismissed on the ground of lack of proximate cause?

The Trial Court answered, Yes,
Flamﬁﬁ-ﬁppeﬁanf Funds answer, Mo,

T, Showld the Funds MPAA claim be dismissed on proximate cansation grounds, even

though commen law causation pringiples ats inapposite becagse the statuie is remsdial and rnst

. ; ;

be liberally construed?

it
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The Trial Court answerad, Yes.

Plaintiff-Appellant Funds answer, No,

Ol Should the Funds' claims under MARA be dismissed on the ground of lack of

antitrust injury or lack of the Funds’ status as consumers or cotapstitors in the market?

The Trial Court answered: Yes.

Plaintiff-Appellant Punds answer, No.

IV.  Should the Punds’ claims under MPAA be dismissed for lack of alleged reliarce

gven though no such element is found in the statutory texi?

The Trisl Court answered, Yes.

Plaintiff-Appellant Funds snswer, No.

Does Michigan recognize 2 chim for intentional breach of 2 special dut}:‘?
The Trial Court answered, No.

] Plaintiff-Appellant Funds answer, ¥es.

X0y
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INTRODUCTION — NATURE OF THE CASE

The three plainfiff Fonds sue on behalf of health care funds located in Michigan that play
an essential role in our voluntary, employment-based healihi ¢are system, (Similar funds have
brought similar suits in many other states,) Mationwide, more than 30 million Americans depend
on “Taft-Hartley” heaith care funds to pay for their hospital, doctor and other medical bills,
These and similar multiemployer health funds are typically established in upionized industries,
such as construction, where workers move frequently from employer to employer, making single-
employer health benefit plans impracticable, Sg_a, e.g., House Rept Mo 96-869(0 (Comm. on
Education and Labor), April 3, 1980, p, 54, P.L. 96-364, reprinted at 1980 US Code. Cone. and
Admtin, News, 2918, 2921, Without such funds, these empioysés often would be unable to obtain
health care. The Funds are “affected with a national public interest” becanse “the continned well-
being and security of millions of employees, retirees and their dependents are directly affected”
by them. 28 USC §1001a,

Smoking-related disease accounis for between seven and ten percent of all health care costs
incurred in the United States, and claims over 400,000 Amﬂff:itan lives annually (%44). Taft-
Hartley and similar funds, whose participanis are moétiﬁf blug-gollag WOI?_{EIS,. bear a
disproporiionately high burden because the rate of smoking among such workers is now sbout
twice the national average. (7253-258) Therefore, it is of immense imporiance, both as 2 imatter
of public policy and.tc the Tunds, fhat these costs uiﬁm&tslf be allocated to the wrongdoing
gfmies that should bear them according to our system of laws. This liigation seeks that goal,

The tobacco companies acknowledge that damage clalms van be asserted agatnst them for

stnoking-related infuries, but imsist that only smokers {or pardes sumg “iv the shoss” of smokers

sfia subrogarion rights) may bring those clatms — no marter what the legal theory, ao maiter who
b

ey
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aciually paid the freatment costs, and no matter who is the “best” plaintiff according to an analysis

of policy factors. Accordingly, whenever health cars payors have sued to r‘ccove;r the cost of
treating smoking-related diseases, the tobacco companies’ first defense has been that only persons

suffering actual bodily injury (smokers) have iegal standing to sue, and payors are barred on

proximate causation (also called “standing™) grounds of “zemoteness” or “indirectmess.” In
particular, tobacco companies insist that payors, such as the Funds - the entitics that actually pay

, smoking-related health care costs — may sue only in subrogation, and are legally barred from
suipg on their own bebalf for the economic mjuries they have suffered, even if the payors plead
that the tobacco campaﬁfés’ misconduct intentionally, directly, and immediately affected t‘he.
activiries of the payors themselves, such as by impairing their implementation of smoking cessation
Programs.

As a practical matter, it makes no sense o conclude, as did the trial court, that there is
some large “remotencss” gap between Defendants’ misconduct (for example, their interference
with the Punds” ability to counteract smoking addiction among Fund partieipants) and the Funds’
imjuries (payment of medical costs {0 txeai smoking-related diseass). MNor is it fair or appropriate
for Defendants to contend that redress for these injuries can be sought only through personal
infury or product lobilily cases brought by or on behalf of smokers, subjec: 20 the various
affirmuative defenses (ke assumption of risk) that tobacco companies have routinely interposed
10 obtain dismissal of such cases. When the ¢laims asserted by pavors, liks fhe Funds’ ¢labms
 here, satisfy the slements of other theories of TeECOVErY — conswmer protection, antitrust, or fraud,
for cxample - then those claims should be evaluated on their own merits, and not rejectéd out of
tand because they are mot persomal injury ¢r product lizbility claims asserted by smokers

themselyas.

[
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The Funds are the appropriate plaintiffs for the claimg they have asserted, and in importane )

tespects the Funds are the only plainiifis possessing the legal abilily io assert these claims — first,

because the Funds have paid the costs of ireating the Smakz'ng-_-related disease of their participants,

and second, under the antitrust lews, because only the Funds have suffered “economic” injury, 7

as distinct from bodily injury, that can be recovered under anfitrust laws, Accordingly, the Funds
are sting to recover the economic costs that ey incwred; they ave not asserting claims on behalf
of smokers for personal injuries, pain and suffering, lost wages, or any medical costs borae by
the smokers themselves. Indeed, history shows that smoker lawsnits have always foundered on
the immense problems of providing proof of causation, damages, and defenses on a smoker-by-
smoker basi$, The Funds seek 0 avoid those problems by bringing different claims based on
different theories of Defendants’ misconduct, and by seeking recovery only for the aggregate
economic depletion of Fund assets (which means thai any recovery does not meed to be
apportioned on 4 smoker-by-smoker basis).

This case does not arise in a vacmm. Its most imporiant precedents are the cases {iled by
over 40 states, including Michigan, for recovery of tobacco-related health care costs they had
incurred as health care payors (through both Medicaid and State employee heaith plans) zs a result
of industey ﬁn'scon&ﬁc%:. The cases brought by the states involved claims and theories ofl lability
and damages virtually identical to the Funds’ case here, and the tobaceo sompanies consistently
raised the same remoteness defense. The vast majority of courts {mostly state courts), including
Miichizan, permitied some or all of the plaintT states” claims fo procesd, Tejecting defendants’
remoteness argament, with several courts carefully noting that plaintiffs would have standing even
if they did not enjoy soverelgn staius. As has been widely rsporied, the first fmlr state cases that

neared or started trisl wers seitled by the industry for over 340 biilion, and 2 global settlement
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benefiting all remaining statss followed in 1998 for some $206 billion. There is no honestly
defensible way (o square those ontcomes with Defendants’ remoteness avgument, and the trial
gourt’s dismissal on that ground, here.

This Court should conclude that the Funds are appropiiate plaintiffs for the claims they
assert, reverse the trial court’s dismissal, and remand the case 50 it ean proceed in the trial court.
STATEMENT OF FACTS

A.  Description Of The Plaintiif Health Funds'

Plaintiffs are two multemployer health care funds covering union workers in private
industay in Michizan, organized under §302(c)(5) of the Labor-Managemenr Relations (“Taft-
Hartley”} Act (LMRA), 29 USC §186(c)(5}, and governed by the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), 29 USC §§1001 ¢t seq.; and one similar multiemployer health care
M covering Michigan public employees, crganized under state law, The Pi.}nds are
administered by boards of irustees (§713-15) generally compesed of equal numbers of
1¢presentatives of the coversd workers {fypically elected union officers) and representatives of
contributing employers. Ses 28 USC §186(c)(5)(B): NLRB v Amax Coal Co, 453 US 322 (19813,

The complaint secks class weatment for all similar health funds located in Michigan,

! The facts stated in this ssction are taken from the First Amended Complaint, ciisd by
paragraph. As the trial court recognized (Tn 493

A moetion for summeary disposition under MCR 2. 116(C)(8)
is tested on the pleadings alone. Simko v Blake, 443 Mich 648,
854 (1995). All well-pleaded aflegations are accepted as true, and
construed most favorably 1o the non-moving party. Wade v Dept.
of Corrections, 435 Mich 158, 182-53 (1992). A court may only
grant sumimary disposition purseant 1o MCR 2.118(CHE) where the
claims are so clearly umenforcesble a3 o matter of law that 50
factual development could possibly justify recovery. Simkg v
Blake, supra, §54; Wade v Dept, of Compections, nupia, 183,

ad
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The Funds pay comprehensive heaith care and related bemefits for members covered by
the Funds pursuant o varions collective bargaining agreements, for their families and for retirees
{collectively “pariicipants™). (ﬁﬁ[_ﬁ{[s, 37 The Funds are required to bold their asseis in trust
for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to thejr participants, ERISA §8403(2), 403(¢)(1)

-and 404(2)(1)(A), 29 USC §§1103(2), 1103(c)(1) and 1104(a)(1)(A); LMRA §302(c)(5)(A), 29
USC $136(c)(5)(A); MLRE v Amax Coal Co, 453 US 322, 328-336 (1982); In.se Culhane’s

nst, 172 Mich App 298, 313-14

Estate, 269 Mich 68, 74-75 (1934); In e QGreen d

(1998). By law, employers of unions may not claim fund property and have no right or ability
to sne for damage to fund assets, Id.; gsg also 29 USC §§1102-09. The participants’ medical
bills are typically paid directly by the Fands to the health care providers, rather than by the
participants with Fund reimbursement to them. (1§41, 266, ?;04, 305, 311, 328, 329)

The Funds are funded by conrributions made by participating employers, collectively
bargained as part of 2 total compensation package, (99263-264) The Funds are non-profit; unlike
most insurance compandes, there are 0o shareholders who participate in profits or losses.* The
employers’ contributions to the Funds are not “premivms” that can be adjusted io reflect claims
experience, Rather, thelr conixibutions -- and therefore Fung assels — are typically fixed by the
negotiated contribution rates for the duration of collective bargﬁining agrecments, so increases i
medical costs paid by a Fund directly diminishes the monies available w pay for other treatment
of preventive care, for smokers and nop-smokers alice, (1264) This case thys exemplifies the
principle that a trast fund’s trastees, as fduciaries, may seek o tecover iTust assets that have been

depleted due to third persons’ miscondue.

* Indeed, ERISA sxprassly provides that Taft-Hartley funds are not insurance companics
and may net 0¢ regulatsd as such by fhe states, 29 USC §1144M(ZNEB); 3es FMUS Comp v
Folliday, 458 US 352 (19%90).
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B. ’Eubacm Industry Misconduct

In the early 1950's, sclentific studies linking smoking to health risks surfaced in pubfic
discourse. (J985, 86a-b, 98) The Funds ailege that Defcndants concluded that such public
awareness could bring on regulation, products lability, and threats 1o tobacco company
profitability, or could even immeril the industry itseif, (1§62, 68, 228, 352) In other industrics
{such as automobile mannfacturing), concerns about product safety have led io scientific studies,
sovernmental hearings and regelations, litigation if reasonable standards were not met, and
competitive efforts to make and advertise safer products —~ ultimately resulting in reduced risks
for the public. The Funds assert, however, that the tobacco industry was different. Indusiry
members, although mounting & massive public refations campaign starting in 1953 to persuade the
public that the industry would bonestdy research risks from tobacco and make candid disclosure
of the results, entered inio a conspiracy to do just the opposite, They embérkgd.upon a course of
conduct, which continues to this day, of deceiving the American public ~ incinding teenagers who
comprise 82 % of starting smokers {(§230), and healith care providers and agencies that deal with
the health problems caused by tobaces use — about erucial issues of tobacee, nicotine, and health.
(E.g., 1764-65, 86-38, D6-09, 108, 115-20, 225-27, 230, 244-45, 268, 279) Industry members
also made a pact ot to compete to davelop safer products that would cause less illpess or reduce
addictive behavior, and agreed nof o advertiss differences in product safety or reveal other
product safety information. (116-20, 143-53, 284-97)

As g result of the conspiracy, programs for smoking sessation -- in marked contrast io
programs fo ireal drug addiction and alcoholism - were not developed oa a sclentifically validated
basis that wouid permit such programs’ widespread acceptance for coverage by healih care and

insurance plans. (19228, 300, 303, 313, 318-19, 323-13) Forszample, olinical guidelines were

R
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issued only in 1596, ieg Agency for Health Care Policy & Research, Clinieal Guidelines No. 18:
Smoking Cessation, Rockville, MD: ACPHR Pub. No. 96-0692 (April 1896),) Millions of
American contimue to become addicted smokers, almost always as teepagers (1230, 252); a high
proportion of those people suffer serious fllnesses that they otherwise would have avoided, and
for which their health care providers otherwise would not have had to pay. (744-53, 263, 264)
In additicn, tobacco products are no safer teday than they were 40 years ago, and there is no
competition among cigarette mapufacturers to sell truly safer products. (§7284-98)

Starting in the 1970°s, when smoking rates began io decline ameng white-collar workers,
tobacco comnpany advertising focused increasingly on blue~collar families (7253-57). As-a result,
while overall national smoking rates have been declining, blue-collar smoldng rates have remained
fairly steady or even increased in recent years, ({d.) Among blue-collar workers the prevalence
of smoking is now approximately twice the national average. {§1253.54)

Defendants’ conspiracy ook many forms, Defendants falsely discredited adverse scientific
research results, and the companies promised ameng thernselves not {o perform research on
smoking and bealth other than througt their joint organization. (]]101-04, 117-20) Extensive
efforts were made to avoid public dissemination of accurate and complete fformation about the
addictive namre of nicotine, (19166-75, 184, 189-61) Defendants also nudertook disinformation
campaigns against health care plans, This included supprcssiﬂg or chailenging avidence tha
smoking causes disease and is addictive (1§63-142); undertaking covert actions againgt insurance
companies’ sfforts to implement premivm discotmts for non-smokers); mpairing development and
implementation of smoﬁﬂg cessation programs, which would reduce the mumber of smokers but
imaperil robacco company profits (34238, 200, 303, 313, 318-19, 320-30); boyconing suppliers

that promoisd smoking cessation products: and maintintay te poweriul e that the Hink beiween
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smoking and disease was an “open controversy”. (E.g., {64, 98-106) Defendants hired former
union lobbyists t0 Qppﬂﬁéllﬁit)ﬂ sfforts to curtail smoking in the workplace, without revealing that
these lobbyists were being paici by the tobacco industry, As recently as 1994, tobacco company
chief executives testified under oath to Congress that micotine is aot addictive, despite their
Imowledge 10 the contrary, tﬂ[ﬁ54-563 271-77) To this day, tobacco cormpanies have not accepted
any Tesponsibility for the death and disease caused by thelr products. ({54-57)

Some tobacco companies 4id in fact develop safer cigarettes, but as part of their antitrust
conspiracy refrained from producing and marksting them or even acknowledging their existence.
§9135.59, 162, 28881, 296} A main reason was © preserve “the tobacco industry’s joint
flitigation] defense efforts” and preserve “{tlhe industry position . . . that there is no aliernailve
[safer] design for a cigarette,” according to an industry lawyer. (Ti63) Tnstead, cizarette makers

kept these less bazardons cigarettes off the market, holding them in reserve to retaliate in case

other mannfacturers breached the corspiracy by competing on product safety, (§291) Likewise, .

Defendants that did develop prodoct information on cigareite safety that would have helped them
market safer brands withheld such information, honoring their agresment to refrain from
advertising differences in produst safety, (47149-50, 131-56, 284-97)

Because many of the issues and risks concerning tobacco and micoting focused on health,
Defendants targeted rauch of their misconduct at the Funds and other health cars payors in order
to fraudulently shield themselves from baving to pay the health care cosis of fobacco-related
diseases and to shift those costs to-others, ooluding the Funds. (7253, 237, 263-70, 300-01,
322

The industry’s wrongdoing injured the Funds through two distinct cousal shains!

First, Defondants’ manipulatdon of information and suppression of safer produets

2
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immediately affected the Funds, which would have used accurate information and safer :producrs
in the operation of their business o reduce smoking‘ rates, %hereby reducing smoking-related
disease znd lowering Fund expenditures. ({228, 284-331) Had Defendants not undertaken their
deceptive, fraudulent and anti-compstitive activity, the Funds conld bavs sarlier takeﬁ counter-
measures against smoking and smoking-related diseases and woald have commenced legal efforts
rmuch sconer and more effectively to impose the costs resulting from fobacco use on the tobacco
companies, ({9228, 312-22) Similarly, had Defendants not suppressed the manufaciure and sale
of safer tobacco/nicotine products, the Funds could have adopted pfogzams and mules epcouraging
or even requiring participants who smoked jo use safer, less addictive cigarefies and/or participate
in smoking addiction-ireatment programs. (9303, 319, 330

Second, Defendants’ misconduct also immediatly impacted smokers, causing them to
begin smoking, smoke more cigareites, choose less safe products to smoke, and suffer tobacec-
related diseases, thereby increasing the medical costs paid by the Funds for treating such disease,
(E.g., 19229-62, 265-66, 30205, 377)

As eptities that wotld have undertaken sitonger anti-smoking racasures if not deprived of

velevant information and products, and as the entities that paid the bills, the Funds have borne the

brunt of smoking-zelated health care cosis. The Funds seek to replenish their toust asseis by -

recovering damagss fom Defendants  compensate for their seonomie Imjuries caused by

Defendanis” misconduct.
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C.  Proceedings In The Trial Court

The Funds filed their original somplaint on Dscember 30, 1997, Defendants removed the
case to federal district court pursiant to 28 USC $1446(h) on Rebruary 8, 1998, The federal court
granted the Funds’ remand motion on August 19, 1998, and, afier denying Defendants’ motion
to reconsider, remanded the case on September 22, 1998, The Funds filed their First Amended
Complaint (the pleading now at issue) on Neovember 3, 1998. |

Defendants moved to dismiss the First Amended Complaint pursuant to MCR 2, 116(C)(8)
on December 18, 1998, On February 12, 1999, in a bench opinion following oral argument, the

Honorable Robert J, Colombo, Jr. granted Defendants’ motion on. the grounds described above.

Judge Colombo nevertheless observed (Tr: 60):

Now, I am not so confident that my rlings will be sustained on
appeal.

A final order dismissing the cage was entered on February 26, 1999, The Funds filed their

Notice of Appeal from that order on March 17, 1999,
ARGUMENT
STANDARD OF REVIEW

Appellate review of & motion for summary disposition s de novo, Spiek v Michigan Dep’t
of Transpoctation, 456 Mich 331, 572 NW2d 201 (1988). The standard of review by this Courn
regarding 2 circndt court’s grant of summary disposition pursuant o MCR 2.116(@(8). is ‘#;ell
seitled:

The motien is to be wested on the pleadings alons. The motion tests
the legal basis of the complaine, net whether it can be facmually
supported. ‘The factuzl allegations of the complaint ate 2ken as
true, along with any inferences or eonclusions which may foirly be
drgwn from fhe facis alleged. Unless the claim is so clearly
ymenforceabls as 2 matter of law that no factnal developrment zzn

10
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possibly justify a right to recovery, the motion uﬁder this subrule
should be denied.

Wodogaza v H&R Temninals, Tng, 161 Mich App 746, 730, 411 NW2d 848 (1987).

1. THE FUNDS' CLAIMS SATISFY APPLICABLE PROXIMATE
CAUSATION REQUIREMENTS,

A.  Proximate Causation Is An Tssue Of Publie Pelicy,

Proximate cause is a cause of which the law will take notice. Haperman v Gencorp
Automotive, 457 Mich 720; 728, 379 NW2d 347, 351 (1998). 1t is oot determined by application
of some rule-of-thumb. 457 Mich at 734, Rather, “[t}he line of demarcation between causes
which will be recognized as proximate and those which will be disregarded 23 remote is really a
floxible line.” 457 Mich a 735, |

“Thus the limit of proximate cause is a question of public policy, and its boundaries
depend on the type of case In which the Court is asked {o determine those boundaries. 457 Mich
at 735-36. See also Palsgraf v Long Islend R Co, 248 NY 339, 352, 162 NE 99 (1928)
(Andrews, J., dissenting) ("What we do mean by the word ‘proximate’ is that, because of
convenierce, of public policy, of 2 rough sense of justice, the law arbitrarilly declines 10 trace 2

series of events beyond a certaln point™), Cases under federsl laws that wtilize proximate

causation analysis are to the same effsct, See As

Californiz State Council of Carpenters, 45 US 519, 356-37 (1983) ("*[TThe infinite variety of

claims that may arise make it virtually impossible fo announce & black-letter zule that wili dictate
the result In every case.”); Holmes v SIBC, 303 US 238, 272 020 {1592) {“our use of the term
. ‘direct’ should merely be understood as a reference o the progimats-canss enguiry that is

informed by the concerns st out in the text™). Accosdingly, a leading treatise summarizes:
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“Proximate eause” — in itself an unfortumate term - is
merely the limitation which the courts have placed upon the actor’s
responsibility for the consequences of the actor’s conduct . . . .
Some boundaries must be set to liability for the consequences of any
act, upon the basis of some social idea of justice or policy.

This Hnitation is fo some extent associated with the pamre
and degree of the connection in fact between the defendant’s acts
and the events of which the plaintif complains. Often o 2 greater
gxient, however, the lepal limitation on the seope of LHability is
associated with policy - with our more or iess inadequately
expressed idess of what justce demands, or of what is
administratively possible and convenient.

W. Keeton, f al., Prosser and Keston on Law of Torts, §41, at 264 (5th ed 1984),
Aceordingly, this Court’s analysis of proximate causation, coneerning the relationship

between Defendants’ alleged mmisconduct and the Funds’ injuries, must not be based on any pre-

defined rule, but rather must rest on policy considerations, including “notions of fajmess and

Justice.” Hagerman, supra, at 735,

B. Al Relevani Factors Show That The Funds Satisfy Proximate
Causaton Reguirements,

Judee Colombo did not engage in any explicit policy analysiz, He siated that the Funds’
¢claims are indirect under a rule that “a plaimiff, whe complained of harm flowing merely from
the misfortunes visited upon a third persen by the defendant’s acts, was generally Said-to stand
at too remoie a distance 1o recover,” quoting Holmes, 503 US ai 268-59 (Tr: 49-50) He fufthér

opined that determining the Funds’ damages would be zlmost impossible nnless particwtar injured

participants were identified; that a proposed pending class action of smokers in Michigan raised

2 problem of overlapping recovery of medical expsnses; and that smokers should vindicate their

iz
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own claims or the Funds should pursue subrogation claims.® (Tr: §0-51) The trial court also.”
rejected the Punds’ assertions that Defendants’ miscorcduet divectly affected the Funds, and instsad
characterized the Funds® injuries as derivative of smokers’ injuries and hence indirect, Finally,
the irial court tejected the Funds’ contention that govcming trust law establishes that the trust
finds, not wust beneficiaries (smokers), have sianding to sue for injury to trust assets; and also
rejected the Funds’ contention that prozimate causation extends further in cases of intentional
harm. (Tr:; 51-53) The Funds respectfiily submit ihat each of those éoﬁclusions is ineorrect.

1, The Fumds’ allegation thai Defendants imrended fo cause
foreseeanle infury directly fo the Funds defeats any general rule
of remoteness,

Tt is well established that the boundary of the chain of proximate ¢avse extends further in
cases Involving intentional conduct than in those alleging less-deliberate action, In Hagerman v
Gencorp Automotive, suprs, the Supreme Court discussed the limits of proximate cause and
concluded, “Legal causaton reaches further in some tyges"b!f cases than it does im others. it
reaches further in tort actions based upon intentional harm than in those resulting from negligencs.
.. . 457 Mich at 735 (quotation omitted). Ses also Blue Cross and Blus Shisld of New Jersey
v Philip Morzis, 1999 WL 177301 (ED NY, March 30, 1§99) (App Ex E) (“{tJhose who have
acted intentionally or with reckless diszegard for the health and safety of others have difficulty
convincing the law that it is unjust or nnwise for sceisty o hold them responsible for the damages

which foreseeably follow fom their deliberate actions. The law has a sirong intersst in deterring

such intentional siforts to harm others.™); fron Wockers Loeal Enion No. 17 Ins Fund y Philip

* In the state of Michigan’s case against the fobscoo industry, the wial court specifically
rgjecied defendanis’ assertion that subrogation is an exclusive remedy, sither by statue or
contract. Egley v 2hilio Momds, Mo, 96-84281-CZ (Ingham Co Cir Cr, 1957; {App Ez 1), slip
op at 34,

13
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Morris, 23 F Supp 2d 771, 780-83 (D Ohio, 1998) (proximaie cause is broader with regard to

Torts, §4358 (intent, degree

ZLALE,

intentional acts than it is for neglizent acts); Re
;3f moral wrong, seriousness of harm intended are factors in determining whether liability should
be imposed). |

f Liability for intentional acis extends to all intended consequences and fo foreseeable
consequences even if they are “Indirect.” See F. Ha;par, aral, The Taw of Toxts, §6.1 at 270
{2nd ed. 1986) (*if the harm was intentionally caused b#r the appellee, there is no difficulty about
the problem of legal caunsation, since all imended consequences are legal or proxﬁte”);
Restaterment {Second) of Torts, $8A, comment b (*intent is nbt - li_mit?d 10 eonseguences which
are desired. If the actor knows that the consequences are certain, or substantially certain, to result

from his act, and still goes ahead, be {s ireated by the law as if he had in fact desired to produce

the result), W. Keeton, ef al, Prosser and Keston on Law of Torts, 842, at 273 (Sth ed. 1984)
(*[T]he scope of iability shouid ordinarily extend to but not beyond all ‘divect’ (or ‘directly
traceable’) consequences and those indirect comegﬁences that avé foraseeable™) (emphasis added).
The trial cowrt declined 10 aseribe any significance o the Funds® allegaiion that Defendants
intended to canse mjury to the Funds, (Tr: 32-53)* The coust relied on thres cases which merely |

found proximate cavse Jacking even though intentional misconduct (but not insent to injure the

plainddffy was alleged: the two U.S. Supreme Court cases, A
(“AGC”) and Holmes; the mid-19th-century Massachusetts- cass cited in AGC and Holmes,

Anthony v Staid, 52 Mass 290 (1846). Rut each of these pracedents is clearly distinguishable, and

* The trial judge recoguized that Hagerman is authority “for the proposition that the line

for proximate sause is a flexible ling and reaches fuzther . . . In foxt actions based upon intentional
harm” (Tr: 53) Bui he failed to apply Hagerman’s principles hers, apparently merely becanse
intentional conduct is not ahyays a proximats cause of harm o 2 plaindff.

i

i — A : T S WApETT Sggyt

“06L9VT8



in fact confirins the fundamental importance of extending proximate cause in cases of fntended -

infury that directly affects plaintiff (as well as, or instsad of, 2 non-party).

In AGC, the Court explained: “In torts . . . where the plaintiff susfains injury from the
defendant’s conduct to a third person, it is t00 rewote . . . unfess the wrongful act is willful for
that purpose.” 459 US at 532 r23 (emphasis added, guoiipg 1 J. Sutherland, A,m_gm_hg
Law of Damages zt 55-56 (1882)). A Jater version of the Sutheriaad treatise illustrated the quoted
exception with 4 ¢ase in which the defendant (2 wharf owner competing With she plaintiff)
deceived 3 silp captein, who thought defendant was a harbor master,r into moving his ship from
plaintiff’s wharf to defendant’s wharf, which resulted in lost rent to the plaintiff. 1 1. Sutherland,

ages at 128 (1916). Although the infury to the plainiiff was an

“indirect” eifect of the deceit practiced on an intervening non-party (the ship captain), the court |

found that the plaintiff could sue, noting that “the Cases aTe Tumerous where. injuries have been
holden actionable although not directly commitied upon the plaighilf , . . if they were inended to
affest and did injurionsly affect him.” Gregory v Brooks, 35 Conn 437, 446 (1868),

In Apthony v Slaid, plaintiff contracted with a town to financiaily support the poor. The
 defendant’s wife assanlted an indigent and plaiatiff complained of being “put 10 Iucreased sxpense
for his care and support” of tb.e assaulted. The court beld that plaintiff could not recover his
increased sxpenses becanse the damage was {oo “remote and indirsel.” 52 Mass at 281, Butin
that case thers was no allegation whatever that defendant sought o injure the plaintiif.
Corfinming the importaace of that distinction, the same Massachusstts court later explicitly

recogrized that progimate cause sxiends further for infentional comduct that causes forssesable

narm by directly affecting the plaimiiff;

13
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[I1t is not alleged that there was any knowledge on the part of the
defendant of the contract betwesn Hoffman and Sie plaintiff or that
the negligence of the defendant had any refation to such knowledge,
There is no allegation of malice on the part of the defendant toward
the plaintiff or toward anybody. Thers is no ailegation of detiberate
design by the defendant to accomplish a definite end regardless of
consequences to others, If elements of that nature were present a
quite different question would be presented.

Moving & Trucking v Ross Towhoat Co, 280 Mass 282, 283, 182 NW 477, 478-79

(1932).

Thus, 2 key question s whether the defendant infended io'causa injury to the plaintiff. In
Anthony, no such intent was alleged, and proximate causation was found lacking; but in Gregorv
and Chejsea Moving such intent was present and the plaintiff was allowed to sue even thongh his
jury could be termed “indirsct.” This is also the point of Hagerman, which hoids that
proximate cause “reaches further . . . in tort actions based on intentional harm,” as recognized
by Judge Colombo (Tr: 53} — even though he utterly failed to apply or analyze Hagerman'’s
principles in the context of the facts alleged here, Id, Bur the Funds allege that the tobacco
comparies did engoge in intentional imisconduct afmed af harming the Funds (as well as smokers)
-- for the simple }easun that the Funds and other health care payors could otherwise have
implemented sffective smoking cessation programs, cutting inro the tobacco companies” profits,
and that the companies svanted to shift the costs of smoking outo the Funds {e.g., 5]“'112_53; 237,
263-56, 300-01, 313, 320-22). The Funds’ assertion that Defendans” misconduct directly affecred
the Funds’ aciivities and was intended o injure the Funds ?ﬁméyes ihis case from the wmbit of any

of the precedents advanced by Defendants or relied upon by ihe rrial cour.
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2. The poHey factors idemtified I Holmes and AGC slso
demonstrate that the Funds® claims satisfy proximate cansation

standards.

The trial court relied on the articulation of proximate causation factors in Holmes, 2
federal RICO case, in rejecting prozimaie causation here, (Tr: 50-31) OfF cougse, the Funds’
claims do not arise under faderal law, so considerations of intended and foreseeable injury to
plaimiiffs (Paris 1A and IB1 above) and liberal interpretation of remedial statutes (ke the MCPA,
see Part II below) should have primary significance in the proximate causation analysis.
Nevertheless, a review of the three Holmes factors® also shows that proximate causation is

eatisfied for the Funds’ claims.

7 The three policy factors identified in Holmes for making assessments of proximare
causation are (1) whether allowing suit by the “indirect” party wonld male cavsal connection 100
speculative or difficult to prove; (2) whether suit by that party would require complicated

apportionment of damages in order 1o avoid Juplicative recoveries against the defendant; and (3}

whether indiveciness means that there is a more directly injured party who could bring the same
cause of action, 503 US ai 269, 273 0. 20.

The Holmes factors derive from the same facines for assessing proximare causation in
federal antitrust cases artieuiated in AGC. See Holmes, 503 UJS at 270. The federa) precedents
are also relevant becanse MARA avthorizes Michigan courts 1o consider imterpretations given by
federal courts with sespect fo comparable foderal antitrust statutes, MCL 443,734(2).

It is clear that the Holmes/AGC factors do not replace the vnderlying common law
principles of proximate causation discussed in Part IBI sbove. For example, AGC states that an
intent to harm an antitrust plaindff “should ‘ordivarily be dispositive’ in creating standing.” 459
US at 537 n33. Foreseeability is also recognized as an important factor in this analysis. Seg Blue
Shield v MeCready, 457 TS 4865, 478-70 (1982).

Furthermore, 1o single facior is necessarily dispositive. Tor sxampls, as the ivial court
ohserved (Tr: 53), de AGE Court denied stznding to the plaindiil union potwithstanding an
express allegation there of intent to cause infury (459 1S at 537). But this was due largsly o the
fact that 3 *mors direcs” plaintif In the AGC situation (subcontraciors} alsa could bring the same
¢laim, The factors balance differsntly hera, ag described in the fext.

Fipally, the addidoral stending factor of “amtitrust Injury,” applicable to antitmust claims,
is treated separately in Pari I below,

i7
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2. Damages can be derter ascertzined and “apportioned” in
cases bronght by the Fands than in smoker cases.

The trial court first asserted that ascertaining the amount of damages is more difficult in
cases involving “a less direct injury,” and observed that'in this case, “[wlithout identifying
particular participants or beneficiaries, determining damages is almost jmpossible.” (Tr: 50) |

It was simply improper for the trinl conxt to deaw this conclusien on a pleading motion,
with no -faciual record before it. Moreover, the relevant precedents show that the trial court’s
concern is unfounded. Similar damags models offered by health care payor plaintiffs have been
accepted by the courts in other cost-recovery cases.® In fact, overall there is far /ess uncertainty
in assessing the Fupds’ damages than thers Is in individual smoker cases. That is because
statistical proof of the link between Defendanis’ misconduct and increased medical bills at the

Fund level, covering thousands of workers, is inherently far snore accurate than trying to prove

whether a specific worker would have contracted an iliness if she had smoked fess or had access

1o safer cigarettes.” Individuated (smoker-by-smolker) proof sould be exiremely cumbersome,
inefficient and impractical for the conrts, and would also lkely 7e so sxpensive as to preclude

smokers’ pursuit of those claims, which obviously is Defendants’ purpose.

S Bes, e.g., Tron Wor 2 Fund, 29 Fluppdd at 320 (pladauiffs show evidence of
casts peid, sufﬁmem 10 demcnstrata 111}111’3? m business or propexty,” based on their damage
model); Mortt 2 nlovers Health Fund v Bhilip Morris, No, £97-840WD, slip op.
(WD Wash, Des, 2:; 1998} {épu E:: D) (denying defendants’ Dauber motion to exclude damages

model); Texas v American Tobscso Oo 14 FSupp2d 956, 268 (D Tex, 1997) (in considering
proximare causation, court considered plalntiffs’ darsage modsl and concluded that “at this stage
in the litigation, damages wre not sufficiently difficult to caloulate 1o warrant dismissal of this

action™}.

? Mcreover, onee the focr of damages s established, there I 2 relaxed standard for proving
the amount of those damages. Defendants may aot profit from tneeriaimty crested by thelr own
violatioms, Sse 1. Truett Payne v Chrysler Moo, 451 15 557, 566 (1981); Zenith Radio Com
- ¥ Hazeltine Researshy, 305 US 100, 114 09, 123-25 {1969),

i3
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common 1aw principles of standing apply toltmsts covered by ERISA® The trial cour
erroncously distinguisﬁed Appollivari on the ground that it “invelved wrongs rommified directly
against the corpus of the trust” (defendant’s deseit in obtaiz;ing trust funds). (Tr: .52) Buz the
Funds here dg allege that quendmzfs committed wrongs direcily agaipst the Funds, such as
intentionally impairing the Funds’ ability to implement smoking cessation programs.

The Second reason that supposedly overlappiﬁg recoveriss (by smokers aud by the Funds)
are not & problem is the single satisfaction rule. That sule — and the associated defense of
payment assertable by Defendants in the ynlikely circumstances that averlapping judgments for

the same damages were to arise -- applies to all claims assertable by the Funds and/or smokers,

thereby preventing muliiple recoveries with respect {o any claims or injuries, Seg Restatement

orp, 401 US at 348 (anuitrust); fron Workers

{Second) of Torts §885(3) (torts); Zenith Radio
Loca] Fupd, 23 FSupp2d at 785 nn24-26 (collecting cases and holding the single satisfaction rule
eliminates duplicate damages concern in Taft-Hartley fund Ease); Rogets v Defroft, 457 Mich 125,
155-157, 579 NW2d 840 (1998), In short, there is no risk of overlapping oy duplicative damage

recoveries here.

C Smokers capnot vindicate clzims ssserted by the Funds
in this Btization,

The trial court expressed the third EHoimes/AGE favtor by stating: “the need to grappie
with these fproximate causation and standing] problems Is unjustficd where directly injured

victims could vindicate their own claims.” (Tr: 50) The court observed that health care providers

* Comtral Srates Penglon Fand v Ceotral Transnort Inc, 472 US 539, 570-71 (1983) (ERISA

rugts and trustees ace governed by the commoen lew of trusts). ERISA wusts are legal entiiles ahle
1o sue in thelr own name. ERISA $502{d), 29 TSC $1132(D (“An smployss beneflz plag [like
the Funds] may sue or be sued under this subchapier as an entley™).

20
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often file Hens to protect their interests in patients’ sults to recover medical expenses, and that the
Funds conld pursue ¢laims by way of subrogation. (Tr: 51)

The trial court’s analysis is cemainly incorrect with_féspcct to the Funds’ claim under
MARA. As the trial court observed in another section of its decision, an antitrust viclatdon must
involve injury to “business or property” in order 1o be actionable. (Tr: 55) While the trial court
focused on whether thé Funds’ injuries involve “business or property,” it is also consistenily held
that claims for monefary damages flowing from @ person’s own bodily injury are excluded. See
Reiter v Sonotone Corp, 442 US 330, 339 (1579); Genty v Resolution Tost Corp, 937 F24 899,
918 {3rd Cir, 1991); Drake v B.E. Goodrich Co, 782 F2d 638, ¢41 (6th Cir, 3.986}. Thus,
smokers cannot sue under antioost laws for their bodily injuries; and even if they had paid the
medical bills, they could not assert antitrusi claims with respect to those bills, On the other hand,
the Funds can sug under aniitrust for the same medical bills because U.S. Supreme Court
authority allows a plaintiff to sue for damage to its- business or property flowing from physical
injury inflicted on others. NQW v Scheidler, 510 US 249 (1994),"° See aiso, Steele and

td Clinde.

This conclusion weighs heavily in demonstrating proximate causation for thé Funds’
MARA claim, The smokers cannot assert that clain, ¥ the Puods are denied antitrust stanc‘i_ing,
Defendants® violations of MARA would he unfally sheliersd in & safe harbor and effectively

Inmemized from any private redress. Thus, proximate causation is not found lacking if that wonld

¥ In Scheidler, defendants were alleged to have cosumitted znd threatened physical
violence against 2 clinic’s smploysss and patients. From that physical njury suffered by the
employess and patients flowed an alleged sconomic hatm to the climic’s business or property,
namely lost business. the clinic owner was beld 1o have standing based op imjury o its “business
and/or property imerssts,” Scheidler, S10 US at 253-56.

21
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be “likely to leave a significant antitrust violation undetected or nnremedied,” AGC, 459 US at
542; see alsq California v ARC America Corp, 490 US 93, 102 26 (1989) (importat that-“at least
some party have sufficient incentive to bring suit.”) The pn;nt is not o resixict claims - if is fo
aid enforcement by allowing suit by the plaintiff that will face the fewest problems with causal
proot.

Moreover, with respet ©0 the Funds® other claims, as discunsed at Part IB2b above,
smokers carmot remedy any claimed violations when Defendants’ misconduct directly affected the
activities of the Punds themselves, For example, the smokers cannot claim that Defendanis’
practices that inferfersd with implementing smoking cessation programs by the Funds constituted
MCPA, MPAA, or commor law violations, Here, t0o, cither the Funds’ claims satisfy proximate

gansation, or no ¢laims 2t all are permitted and Defendants escaps Hability for their misconduet.

The latter ouicome, adopted by the trial court, would contravene the entire policy-based purpose

behind proximate causafion analysis,

3, The fact that smokesrs® filnesses vnderie the Funds’ injuriss does
not detract from proximate causaiion.

Much of the trial sourt’s proximate cansation anzlvsis wéé influenced by the erroneous idea
that the Funds’ injuries are “derived” from iilmesses suffered by smokers, thereby supposedly
making the smokeis more appropriate plaintiffs. With respeci to the Funds’ claim that
Defendants” wrongful 2ction prevented the Funds from obiaining and using bstter treatment
products, for sxample, the trial court summarily stated: “this clalm is merely derivative of the
personal injury claims of the parteipants and beneficiaries.” (Tr 37} The coprt also
characterized the Fonds® sssertion that they conld have saved méne‘y if they had not heen decsived

by Defendants as implicating only “indirset injuries 1o the funds as a resnlt of the direct injuries”

22
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to the smoKer participants, (Tr: 52)

The fact that the measure of'the. Funds’ economic injuries derive from the costs of treating
their participants’ bodily injuries arises ¢nly due to the happenstance that the Funds® business is
devoted to paying their parficipants’ medical costs, Disqualifying the Funds from asserting claims
io recover those costs on (“derivative”) proximate causation grounds simply because the Funds’
business is to pay for treatment for such bodily injury would be arbitrary and is not supported by

any principled reason or case precedent. It would unjustifiably set up health care as 2 uniquely

disfavored industry in utilizing remedial statutes to obtain legal redress,

Indeed, prior to these tobacco cases, “derivarive” injmj', 28 g factor standing aione, has
never been accepted as a reason £or rejecting prozimate ¢ausation, One example is claims for loss
of consortium, A Michigan court, considering the “derivative™ character of such a claim, has
explained:

The alleged damages are separate and distinet from any damages to
the physically injured spouse, yet they are dependent both legally
and causally on the latter. Our Supreme Court has recognized that
a claim for loss of consortium is derivative “but only in the sense
that it does net arise 4t all unless the other, Bupaired spouse has
sustained some legally cognizable harm or injury,” and treats such

2 ¢laiz not a3 an liem of damages, but as a separate cause of action,
Eide v Kelsey-Haves Co, 431 Mich 26, 29, 427 NW2d 488 (1988).

rohett v RX Optical, 232 Mich App 174, 183, NW2d ___ (1998) (MNeff, P.J., concurring
in part and dissenting in part). 3ee also Endviiewicz v Staje Hwy Commrs, 414 Mich 377, 337,
324 NW24 755 (1982} (recognizing separate claim for 1oss of companionship even though “those
damagss arise as a drect conssquence of the bodily infury” of desedent). In fact, most economic
injuries “derive™ from events that are not immedjéteiy associated with the injured party, such as

increased nosts mmpesad by a supplier, or desreased Incoms dedvad from & eustorner ~ yet those

23
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situations do not disqﬁaiify On proximate causation grounds thé claims of a plaintiff secking
damages from a wrongdoer,

Courts regularly accept claims that are labeled as derivative and that flow “mersly from
the misfortunes visited upor a third person by te defsndant’s acts.” The comumon law allows so-
called “indirect” plaintiffs to recover in mumerous circumstances. |

The trial court’s swmmary rejection of the Funds’ claims as supposedly “derivative” or
“indirest” ls plainly srroncous.

4.  Numerons couris have sustaiced healih care payors® claims
against the tobacco companies in the face of the fobacco
companies’ proximate eausation defenses,

Courts, both federal and state, that have addressed pfoxﬁnate cause issues in similar

tobacco health recovery cases have made varying policy decisions.” This Court must decide

" Gen o g H Rosenhiurg Inc v Adler, 461 A2d 138 (NJ § Ct, 1983} (independent auditor
liable to third party for preparing inaccurate public financia! statement); Rozny. v Mazmul, 250
ME2d 556 (B! 8 Ct, 1965) (surveyor lisble for inacourate boundary survey to third pariy purchaser
of land); Immerman v Qstertag, 199 AZd 869 (NT Super Ci ,1964) (notary public attzsting
sipnature of wrong person); Hardy v Charmichael, 24 Cal Rptr 475 (Ct App, 1962) (inspector
liable for negligent inspection of termites 1o third party who subsequently purchased home); Lucas
v Hamm, 364 P2d 685 (Cal S Ct, 1961) (attomey liable for nepligent drafting of will to third
party who otherwise would have received profits); Rizkanja v fiving, 320 P24 16 {Cal 5 Ct, 1958)
{en banc) (notary public tiable for negligent drafting of will to third party who would otherwise
have recsived profits); United States v Rogets & Rogers, 161 F Supp 132 (3D Cal, 1958)
(architect held lable to third party for failing to supervise for conformity with specifications);
Western Unjon Tel Co v Mathis, 110 8o 399 (Ala 8 Ct, 1926) (telsgraph company liable for
neghigent defay in transmission to third party who lost contract as vesult); Glanzer v Shepard, 135
NE 275 (Y Ct App, 1922} (public weigher lzble to third parly},

* {“ases holding proximate causation requirements satisfied by payors’ claims include:
Arkansas Blue Cross apd Bhie ﬁhxezg ¥ Ehjhp_M_ms 3999 Us Ihst LEXES 4573 {ND i, Apxﬂ
5, 1999) (App Ex D), Blug Cros 2 St {eew Jorse
177501 (BD NY, March 30, 1999} (Ag:p Ex “} ron !

Philin Morris, 23 F Supp 2d 771 (WD Ch, 1938); | ky Lab : T.'
We]fare af fund v Hill & Xnowlion, Inc, 24 F Suup Zﬂ 755 ('WD KV 1993}, Natiopal
Asbestos Workers Med Fund v Philip Morgis, 1998 WL 732911 (ED NY, Qat. 15, 1493) (App

{continued...)
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whether the boundary of proximiate cause embraces the claims of these Michigan non-profit Fand
plaintiffs, or whether, on some policy basis, the tobacco industry Defendants’ intentional
miisconduct involving foreseeable and intended harm fo these Funds is immupne from redress.

Based on the considerations previously described, the Funds’ clainzs should be allowed to procesd.

12( .continged)
ATI0Y "._.'n'-': Henlth Fund ‘J’M T“Supp2d324(DNJ 15998), case

Dec. 23, 1998) (App Ex L} Operating Bpgipeets T.og th &
me;;ggn Tobaceo QQ No EC 177968, ﬂ;pgp (Cal Superf.?t 31113'9 ]993) {App Ex N); Screen
» s Health Plan vﬂn@_Mgzﬂg‘,.No BC 181603 ﬂmg};(Cai Super Ct, June
- p ‘. ~pcary T T . .

22, 1998) (App Ex P); Statio - b & st
Morrs 998 WL 476263 (ND Cal, Aprfl 20, 1998) (AppExU'! Stegmfitters Lo

_;tz Welfare Bund thmg_Mgm_f; No 922602(’1‘311:1%@'& Jan ?9 1999) (AppEx
h Izborers’ Health & Welfare Trust Fund vmhpivm No. 298 CVAOSB(CD
Utah Ma:ch 31, 1999} (AppEmX} .'4!'

No. 3:97-0708 (SD WV, Argust 12, 1998) (AppEx"rj, et Virginia-Of 2y Area JBI
Fund v American Tobaceo Co, No. 2:97-0978 (3D WV, Aug. 11 1998) (&pp EXZ) Amim,
&.5., Ghio v Philip Morris, No. 87CVHO05-5114 (Franklin Co Common Pleas Ct, Ang, 28, 1998)
(App Ex S); Wisconsip v Philip Mogris, No. 87-CV-328 (Dane Co Cir Ct, March 17, 1598) (App
ExD.

Courts declining to extend proximate cause to Punds and granting ihe tobacco companies’
motions to dismiss includs: Laborers 1 fund v Philip Morris, 1999 US
App LEXTS 6336 (2d Cir, April &, 1959) (épp Ex 3) (reversmg the district court’s partial denial
of "nonon 10 (izmiss, F Supp 2d 277 (8D WY, 1998), on provimate cause grounds); Steamfitiers
; nnd v Philip Mords, 1999 US App LEXIS 5624 (32d Cir, March

29 1999} {afﬁ:mg distnci couﬁs disrnissal of all clalms, 1998 WL 212846 (ED Pa, April 22,
1998), and crificizing the New Jersey Carpenters decision) {(App Bx V); Hawai] Health & Welfare
Trost gg v E@pﬂm, No 97-00%33 D Haw, Jan, 25 199§) (App Ex ¥); Intl Brotherhood
734 Hesith & Welfare Tn u i998USD15tLEXIS 3114

Tund v mg_m Mo, Cw—97~14{36 m gg {D Anz, Feb. :w 1999) Egm,gmm
Texas MultlCraft, Health & Wetfare Trust Py vﬂm.m_mms No. CV-57-08114, stip op (O
\IM Dac: 24 1998} (App Bz K}, Oregon Laborer : alth & : ,
Philip Macris, 17 F Supp 2d 11;0 {I) Or 1998) miazgﬁﬁaz_ﬂm v Eh}!m Mgm_ 5, Z7F
Supp 24 623 (D Md 1998); Soutfess I 2 L Healih Fund v Philip Morris, 1998
US Dist LEXIS 5440 (D Fl, April 13, 1993} (Apn Fix Q); Texas Cgmgimﬂgmm_
v Philin Morris, 21 F Supp 2d 864 (D Tex, 1998); Rarsnes Blus Shield v Fhilip Mords, 1990
LEXIS 1820 (WD Wash, Jan. §, 1999) (App Ex O); Wiijiams & Drake Co v Amnerican Tobacco
Co, No. 98-533, slip ag (WD Pa, Dec. 21, 1998) {(App Bx AA).

25

LELOYVE S



O, N PARTICULAR, THE FUNDS CLAIM UNDER THE MICHIGAN
CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT SATISFIES APPLICABLE PROXIMATE, .

CAUSATION REQUIREMENTE.

Count I of the Funds’ complaint claims that Defendants’ conduct violated the Michigan
Consumer Protection Act (MCPA), MCL 445.901 e s2q., MSA 19.418(1) 2f seq., inchiding

MCPA §3(1)(s), MCL 443.903(1)(s), which provides:

(1) Unfair, unconscionable of deceptive methods, acts or practices
in the conduct of trade or commerce . . . are unlawfudl and are

defined as follows: , .

{s) Failing to reveal 2 material fact, the omission of which tends to
misiead or deceive the consumer, and which fact could not be

reasonably known by the consumer.

In the decision below, Judge Colombo zpplied the same proximate causation standards to the
MCPA claim as to all other claims in dismussing it {although he did reject Defendanis’® assertion

that only consumers ¢an sue under the statie):

Defendants move for swnmary disposition under MCR
2.116(C)(8) of Plaintiffs’ claims under the Michigan Consumer
Protection Act (hereinafter MCPA), MCL 445.901 et seq., arguing
that the Plainuiffs are not a consumsr and have no standing.

Plainsiffs have cited case law demonstrating that the MCPA
has been applied 1o competitors and persons testing products where
thay are --where there are claims of [deceptive] advertising,

In reply, Defendants assert these cases dealt with direct
injuries and not remote Injuries alleged here.

The reply filed by the Defendants, in effect, maises ihe same
remoteness argument on which this Court has alreedy granted
summary disposizion, With respeet to the claim that the MCPA
limits Plaintiffs to heing consumers, # s clear to this Court thera is
0o such Ymitation. And 1o the extent that Defendanis ars claiming
that there sas ne sianding for that reason, the motion for summary
disposition under MCR 2. 115{C)(E) is denied.

(Tr: 30-61, emphasis added)
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The trial court erred in applying the same proximate causztion and remoteness standard :

1o the MCPA claim 35 10 the Funds’ common law claims.”™ “Because the MCPA is a remedial
statute designed to prohibit unfair practices in trade or commeree, it must be liberally construed
to achieve its intended totals,” Smith v Globe Life Insuranes Co, 123 Mich App, 264, 286, 365
WNW2d 877, 886-87 (1997); Brics v Long Realty, Inc, 199 Mich App 461, 471, 502 NW2d 337,

341 (1993).%

As shown in Part I above, proximate causation -~ the basis on which Judge Colombo
gismissed the MCPA claim — s a doctrine expressly based in public policy. This means that in
areas in which the Legislature has enacted remedial statutes, including MCPA, there is-a strong
policy in favor of liberal statutory interpretation. Dismissal of MCPA claims on the proximate
causation ground of remoteress, a doctring based on common law where 1o such special remedial
purpose is inferred, is inconsistent with the mandated liberal stafutory Inferpretation. Seee.x.,

Leach v Detroir Health Corp, 156 Mich App 441, 448, 402 NW2d 38, 41 (1986) (administrative

¥ The trial court’s erronsous dismissal of the Funds’ MCPA claim is particularly important
becavse the tobacco companies” defenses against the staie of Michigan’s MCPA, claim in its cost-
recovery suit were rejected by Judge Glazer, who heid that the siatutory pre-filing aotice was not
required. Kelley v Philip Moris, No. 96-34281-CD, beneh on (fogham Co Cir Ct, 1997 {(App
Ex )}, As in many other statey, in Michigan the consumer profection a¢t claim was g principal
ground for the state’s assertion that the {obacco commpanies were legaily responsible for
reimbursing smoking-related health care costs the state had incurred.

The Funds ccoupy 2 similarly important zole in providing health care in Michigan as does

the state, and their claims deserve similar zecognition, Accordingly, at 3 bare minimum on this
appeal, the Funds’ MCPA claim shouid be dismissed and remanded for further proceedings.

Acegrd, Dix v Amneries 20, 429 Mich 410, 417, 415 NW2d 206,

208 (1987), Rodrisuez v B@r;:mmkﬁammm 72 F Supp 1009, 1021 (WD Mich 1987);

Mayhal]l v A 8 Poyd Co, Ing, 129 Mich App 178, 341 W24 263 (1983} (broadly construing
“loss” under the MUCPA to include not only monetary loss but ajso the frusteation of a plaintiff’s
sxpectation creaied by defendant’s actions). The MCPA’s invended prxposs is to “prohibit vertain
praciices in iade or ¢ommercs, and o provide for cerlatn remedies.” £rce, 199 Mich App at

470; BcRaild v Shepard Lincoln Mereury, 141 Mich App 406, 409, 387 MW2d 404, 406 (1983),
27

84649#38



decision granting benefits affirned despite employer’s assertion of esiopps] and lack of causation; i

“Because the Workers’ Disability Compensation act is remedial in natuge, its benefits should not
be lightly set aside. Application of standard causation principles in this context would lead 1o
inequitable results.”).
| Judge Colombo’s fejectioﬁ of Defendants’ insistence that the standing provisions of the
MCPA be read narrowly (Tr; 60-61) correctly recognized the requirement of liberal interpretation
of this remedial statute. He erroneously failed to apply a similar liberal analysis to proximate

ceusation under the stamte.

o, THE FUNDS SUFFICIENTLY ALLEGE THAT THEY SUSTERED
ANTITRUST INJURY TO THEIR BUSINESS AND PROPERTY.

Count I of the Funds’ complaint alleges 2 violation of the Michigan Antitrust Reform Act
(MARA), MCL 445.771 ez seq., MSA 28.70(1) et seq. The factual basis for the claim i§ that the
tobaceo companies copspired to suppress competition among thamselves over product quality -
i.., a safer and less addictive product — and to withhold information regarding absoiute and
comparative product safety. (B.g., 9284-97, 117-18, 120, 127, 143-63, 315) This is a classic
hari.ionta] anticompetirive conspiracy among competitors, except unlike the typical situation where
prices are fixed, here it was product gualiry (and information sbout quality) that was involved.

Such anticompetitive actvizy has been consistentdy condemned a3 viclating the antitrst

orp v ndian Head, Ine, 486 US 452, 500-01 (1988)

{conspiracy o prevent safety code approval for campeting product); American Sne of Mechanical
Ensrs, Inc v Hydrolevel Corp, 456 US 556, 577-78 (1982) {comspiracy fo suppress new and
potentially superior “cut-off® device); FTC v Indiana Fed of Dentisis, 4756 US 447, 481 (1988)

{(entitrust lavw covers defendants’ “concerted | | | 2ifort to withhold . | | information”™ sbout thelr
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services from the insurers of defendants’ customers); |
States, 435 US 679, 687 (1978) (antitrust covers conspiracy interfering with the product quality
produced by competitive markets),

The iriaf conrt dismissed the Funds’ MARA claim ‘bot-h on the general proximate causation
grounds previously discussed in Part I above (Tr: 49-54) and for more specific reasons relating
o antitrst injury (Tr: 54-59). The court characterized the Funds® injuries as being derived from
the Funds’ payment of health care costs of treating their participants’ smoking-related illnesses
and conefided that they did not constitute mjury to business or property. (11 54-57) The trial
court also believed that the Funds’ injury is “unrelaied to the anticompetitive clatm” and that the
Tunds “are not consumers or competitors in the markes,” which the cour? concinded m%:ant that
antitrust injury and standing requirsments are zof met. (Tt 57‘—59) |

The Funds’ satisfaction of antitrust proximate causation requirements is demonstrated in
Part ] zbove, The Funds are the first and only entites that paid for the medical costs at issue, and
Defendaﬁts’ alleged antitrust misconduct was intentional in inflicting those Injuries on the Funds.
A primary consideration in sustaining the Funds’ standing under the AGC factors is that no other
persens (including smokers) can bring these antitrust claims sgainst the tobacan comparties, 30 the
Funds are the only parties that can vindicate the antiumst statuie’s pmposes.' Ses Part I{ ) above;
AGC, 459 U5 at 542 {stﬁnding is not denied if it would be *likely to keave 2 significant violation
undetected or unrsmegied™),

The Fands aiso meet the “Injury to business or property” requirement of MARA §3(2),
MCL 445.778(2). Contrary tc; the {rial court’s observations, the case zuthority clearly allows 4
plaintiff to sue for damages o i “business of property” flowing from ghysical injury inflicted

on others, NOW v Scheldler, 510 US 249 (1594), Other courts considering fust fund cases have

3
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explicitly held that identical fund injuries constituted injury 80 “business er property.” Iop

und, 24 Fsupp2d at 769, New

Workers Logal Fund, 23 FSupp?d 4t 792-93; Kentucky ]

Jersey Carpenters, 17 ¥ Supp 24 at 338-39, cage dis _
Furiher, although Judge Colemba aséerfcd that Judge Glazer rejected the state’s MARA, claim on

oronads (May 12, 1999),

“business or property” groundé (Tr: 56), that was not a pact of Judge Glazer's hoidiyg. See
Kelley, slip gp at 8.

In addition, standing under MAKA is particularly relaxed becanse of the statutory language
that — unl:'ké the federal antitrnst statte, $4 of the Clayton Act -~ allows suit by 2 person “injured
directly or indirecily”, MCL 445.778(2). Michigan courts bcnsistﬁntly treat such deviations from
a federal or model statute as significant. Seg e.g., Lawrence Baking Cg v Upemployment
Compensation Com'n, 308 Mich 198, 205, 13 NW2d 260 (1944), gm den 323 US 738 (1544);
Gibson v Neelis, 227 Mich App 187, 194, 575 NW2d 313 (1997); Haworth, Tnc v Wickes Mfg

o, 210 Mich App 222, 22728,  NW2d _ (1995); In re Childress Trust, 194 Mich App
y Hlosn, 111 Mich App 441,

319, 326, 486 NW24d 141 (1992); SEIU Local 79 v Lapser Coun
445, 314 NW2d 648 (1981),

The trial court, relying on Kelley, held that the statute’s nse of the term “indirecdy” did
not broaden standing in gemeral — rather, the court believed that the term referrsd only to
*indirect purchasers” (.., purchasers later in a chain of product distribution) as plainfiffs, (T
58) This is confrary 10 the plain meaning of the statimtory languags; indeed, the term “purchaser”
is not used in the statwtz at all, Other state courts with simiiar state antitTust statutory pmvisiehs
interpret the term “iadirectly” to modify the word injired; aud hold that the use of the term
“indirsetly” broadens the scope of the statute to sxtend protection 1o those indirectly injursd in

sivpumstaness similar 1o thoss here. 3ee, 2.g., State of Marviand v Philip Moy, 1997 WL
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540913, *20 (Md Cir Ct, May 21, 1997) (App Ex R) (state has standing to sue under state

v IS West Celvlar,

anntrust act regandless of standing under the Clayton Act); Cellnlar Plus, Toc
18 Cal Rptr 2d 308 (Cal Ct App, 1993) (although California Jaw requires “antitrust injury’; as in
Clayion Act, the state statute, which provides “for lawsuits by injured persons who dealt “directly
or indirectly’” with offenders is broader in scope); Minnssots v Philip Morgis Ine, 551 NW2d
490, 495-8¢ (1996) (antitrust stamute providing cause of sction for person “injured directly or
indirectly” was an “expansive grant of standing™). The language of MARA thus contradicts the

trial court’s narrow reading.

The trial court also concluded that antitrast injury under MARA was lacking on the basis
that the Funds “are not consumers or competitors in the market” (Tr: 58) and that there is “no
commection” between the Funds’ claims and the clsim that competition was suppresséd in the
market for developing safer nicotine products. (Tr: 58) But the irial court was mistaken in
believing that “consumer of competifor” status was required to satisfy aptitmust injury, and did
not appreciate that the Funds® injuries are atiributable to an anticompetitive aspect of the tobaceo

comppanies’ viclations of MARA.

* Antitrust Injury” is a separate requirement applicable to antitrust elaims, defined as injury

“artributable 1o an apticompetitive aspect of the practics under scnwiny,” Atlantic Richfield ¢

v 1ISA Perroleum Co, 495 TS 328, 334 (1990). 1t is “injury of the type the antitrost Jaws were
intznded to prevent and that flows from that which makes defendants” acts unlewfol. The injury
snould reflect the atttcompetitive cifect either of the violation ot of anticompetitive aéts mads
possible by the violation,” Brunswick Corp v Puehlo Rowh:C-Mat, Tne, 429 US 477, 489 (1977);
Zgnith Radio Corp, 395 US at 125, The requirvement iS designed to flter out claims where the

alleged injury would be due io pro-competitive effects of the defendant’s coadnes.,
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Here, the Funds allege that Defendants conspived to suppress safes products and safetym
information. When those safer products and information were denied, it followed closely and
logically tha: the costs of such misconduct were realized through increesed medieal cesss.
Defendants’ course of miscunduct required that vast segmenis of &33 Bealth sare industry and the
people it covered be misled about the dangers of smoking for ax 1oy as possible and be deprived
of safer products, See Arkansia Blue Cf hield v Eﬁéﬂﬁm,,lng, Ne, 98 C2612,

1999 LEXIS 4573 at *10 (ND I, April 8, 1999) (App Bx I} (“defendants would not have been

in a position to reafize the snormous profits of its m&ustry without the compelled and unknoiving
subsidization by” health care payors). Therefore, the Foods' injury directly reflects the
anticompetitive aspects and effects of Defendants’ misconduct; certainly, no “procompetitive”
results have been identified. |

In assessing antitrust injury, there is no requirsrast cat the injured plalntiff be 2
“consurner” or matket pa:ticipént. Mo reason could exist to sersen out any plainiiffs (assuming
;hcy satisfy the other factors) whose infuriss flow from antiecmpetitive aspcﬁs of the chailenged
=r,:cmduct, just because they are: not a consumer of the defendant’s prodicis. MARA provides that
“any” person may sue, MCL 445.778(Z). The U.S. Supreme Cowt has stated that even the
Clayton Act, with its less expansive language, “does not confing ifs profection 10 CONSUMmers, of
to purchasers, ofr to competitors, of to sellers. The Act is,comprehensive in its terms and
coverage, protecting all whe are made vichims of the forbid;iezx pragices by whomever they may
e perpetrated.” Blue Shield of Virginia v MeCready, 457 US 465, 472, 73 1LEd2d 145, 102 8Ct

2340 {1982) (quotaton omitted), The Sumteme Court has frequently found antitrest injury ;preseﬁt

Lad
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for plaintiffs who are not in the categoriss of competitor, consumer or divect market participant,
In AGC, moreover, the Court rejected the notion that 2 platntf must be in the “area of the
economy which is endaagered by a breakdown of competitive conditions in 3 particular industry.”
459 1S at 537 n33.%

Morsover, the similar language fn MCPA §11(2), MCL 445.911(2), permisting suit by “a
person” who suffers Joss as 2 result of 2 violation of the MCPA, has been uniformly interpreted
(as the trial judge recognized [Tr: €0-61]) to nor be limited o comsumers or competitors in the
market. (See discussion i Part IV below),

Contrary to the trial cout’s opinion, there is ampie anthority for finding antitrust injury
where the plaintiff is not 2 copsumer of the defendant, if foreseeable injury due o anticompetitive
effects is “inextricably intertwined” with injury of others who are affected directly by the lack of
chejee or by other restraint in the restrained market, Thus, the MgCresdy plaimiiff did nos
purchase Insurance policies. Her employer did, It sufficed that plaintiffs infury was foresesable
and inextricably intertwined with injury to those in the restrained mariet. Sﬁch mtertwining was
present because she (not the employers) paid the bills resulting fom the conspiracy, McCready,

AS57 US at 483-84. Zes also Bodie-Ricketi v Mars, 557 F2d 282, 291 (6th Cir, 1992) {accepting

15 Ses. o4, [linojs Brgk Co v Iilinols, 431 US 720, 736 (1977) (indirect purchaser with
cost-plus copiract has antiiust standmg althnugh a6t 2 eoisUmer or competitor in market in which
prices were fixed); California v ARG Americs Corp, 490 US 63, 102 n6 (1989); AGC, 450 US
at 34147 (umionized subcontractors would have standing although not competitors or consumers

of the defendanis).

¥ AGC did observe, in finding no antirust injury for the woion plalntiff in that case, that

ine plaintiff was oot 2 consumer Or 2 compefitar in the restrained market. Id. af 535 Bur the

gouﬂ nowhere contravened its clear reicction of an areg-ni-the-economy test. Mor did it gvernile

T suggesi it was overruling Mclready, Tt simply indicated 4 reason why under the facts of the

kase it was “not tleas whether the [union plaintifPs] interssis would be served or disserved by

snhanced competition in the markst.” Id. The Court thus applied the test of whether the injury
is due io pro- or ant-competitive aspects of the viglation.
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r‘inexn-icably intertwined” standard); Peck v GMC, 894 F2d 844, 347 (6th Cir, 1990); Fallis v

w, 866 F2d 200, 210 (6th Cir, 1989); Province v Cleveland Pregs Put

F2d 1047, 1031 (6th Cir, 1988).

Here, the Funds® infuries are similarly inexiricably intertwined with ijuries suffered by
market participants (smokers deprived of a choice of safer producrs) in that the Funds paid the
bills resulting from the restraint. As the MgCready Court put it “Her psychologist [the direce
“target” of the conspiracy] can link no claim of injury to himself [because] . ... he hag been fully
paid ., , . [fJt is not the employer as purchaser, but s employess as subscribers, who are out
of pocket as a consequence of the plan’s failm i0 pay benefits.” 457 US at 475, Here, it is not
the smokers as consumers buying tobacen, but their Funds as health care payors, who are out-of-
pocket for medical costs as a result of the fajlure of the tobacco market to offer the choice of safer
products. The Funds “participate” in the resirained market by paying the medicai bills resulting
from the restraint; this is ail the market participation that is required for standing.

Any “consumer” litmous test for aptitrust injury would contradict the cases relating to
“inextricably intertwined” injury and the U.S. Supreme Court’s dirsctive that black-jetter _rules
should not be imposed. Hers, the close relationship between the auiicompetitive aspects of

Defendarts’ antirust violations and the Trusts” eponomic injuries yields the clear conclusion that

autitrust imjury is present.
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V. THE FUNDS PROPERLY ALLEGE A SUFFICIENT CLATM UNDER TEE
MICHIGAN PRICING AND ADVERTISING ACT.

The Funds claim that Defendants executed a frandnienr course of conduct, including
placing before the public deceptive and misleading s:atemcnfs, in violation of §6 of the l‘s./ﬁchigan
Pricing and Advsriising Act (“MPAA™) (referred to by the trial court as the “False Advertising
Act,” (Tr: 5%)), MCL 445,356; MSA 18.833(16), which progimately caused harm to the Funds

under MPAA §10(2), MCL 445.360@2). (4§377-379) Section 6(1) of the MPAA provides: “[A]

person shall not knowingly maks, publish, disseminate, circulate, or place before the public an

advertisement which contains a statement or representation which is unmirus, deceptive, or
misleading,” MCL 445.358(1). Under MPAA §10(2), MCL 445.360(2), a person who “suffers
loss as a result of a violation of ™his act” may sue for damages. Accordingly, the Funds’
complaint, tracking the statutory language verbatim, afleges that “as & direct and proximate vesujt
of [Defendants’] wrongful activity, Plaintiff Funds and Class members have suffered and will
continue fo suffer substantial damages and injuries fo thelr business or property . . .° ({378)

The trial court held that those allegations fail o state a claim becanse plaintiffs supposedly
did not also ailege “reliance®. Its entire holding eﬁ this point was:

A claim under MCL 445.356(1) is to be construed with

reference to 2 common law fraud claim. Mavhail v AH. Poud Co.
Ioc, 125 Mich App 178, 182 (1983), reliance is an element of

froud, B Wa § v Int’] Harvester Co, 398 Mich 330, 336
(1976).

The claim under MCL 445.356(1) usserts no reliance.
Consequently, the motion for sumymary disposition under MCR
2,118(C)(8) is granied as 10 ths claim. {Tr; 30-560).
But neither the MPAA nor the ¢ases comstruing it reqbize reliamce, The siatute

comprehensively specifiss sight slemerés of an action thersunder for dammagss. Section &(1)
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prohtbits (1) a person (2) from knewingly (3) ﬁisseminéﬁng or pi;tcing before the public (4) an
advertisement (5) containing an tntrue, deceptive or misleading statement.  Section 10(2)
authorizes an individual er ¢lass action for a violation of §6(1) by {5) a person {7) who suffers loss
(8) a3 a result of 3 violation of the act. “"Reliance” is conspicucusly absent from this exhaustive
Kst, clearly indicating that the Legislatire did nof intend to require #t. Sge, 2.5., People v Preuss,
436 Mich 714, 721, 461 NW2d 702 {1950) {omission of clement shows legislative intent not to

require it; statute should be read Literally unless ruanifestly contradictory o ifs purpose or if

necessary to correct an absurd and unjust result); Michigan Ass’s
Adm’rs v DSS, 207 Mich App 491, 497 (1594); McCready, 457 1S at 472 0.

Thus, while the statute reguires that the false statement cause the loss, it clearly does not
limit the class of persons who may sue to those who actually relied on the statement. A person
mey sue for actual damages suffered, whether or not he actually beard and relisd on the decepiive
statement, so long as his loss resuits from a violation of §6." Hers, for sxample, the Funds
suffered substantial losses to their assets as a result of Defendants’ false advertising by, among
other things, paying for the health care and related costs of disezse and addiction caused by
consumption of the tobacco products being advertised. ({378)

1t is entirely proper to use a weli-defined ferm from the common law 1o interpret the same
or similay term aciually found in z statute. F,g., Thornag v State Hwy Dent, 358 Mich.}, 8-10,
247 NW2d 530 (1976), Bt the trial jodge tsed the common law for a very differery purpose -
1o supply 4 new slement a0t found in the stamtory text.

Tndeed, the case cited by the wisl court, Mayhall v A3 Pond Co Ing, 129 Mich App 178,
341 NW2d 268 {1933), clearly limits use of the common law for staintory interpretation to terms

sciuaily contained in 2 stamute. “/BJy specifying in §10 of $he PA4 . . . rhet In order to bring sult
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a plaintiff must suffer a ‘loss’ as a result of the stamtory violation, the Legislature, we conclude,
* has incotporated in the actl] the common law requirement of igury.” 129 Mich App 183
(emphasis added). Thus, it is precisely because the Legislature chose to inchude in the MPAA 2
term (“loss”) similar 0 & common law frand concept (imjury) that the specific statutéry term
should be construed with reference to the common law. Accordingly the frial court erred in
imposing a reliance raquirement when none is specified in the statute,V |

Rulings as to paralle] provisions of §11(2) of the MC‘PA MCLA 445.911(2), also make
clear that reliance is not required here.®® Like §10(2) of the MPAA, MCPA §11(2) permits “a
person who suffers less as a result of a viclation of this act” fo sie. And as with MPAA §10(2),

Mavhall held that MCPA §11(2) should aiso be construed with reference to the common law tort

17 Moreover, no Michigan case holds that reliance is an ¢lement of a claim under the
MPAA. Mavhall's reference to the common iaw was aimed solely at the meaning of “loss” in
§10(2) of the starute, MCL 445.360(2) — not at the elements of a violation of PAA §6(7), MCL
445 356(1), for whxch the trial judge erroneousiy cited Mavhall. (Tr 50) And see Pantslag v

Vi ) A & Co, 169 Mich App 273 (1988) (aggravation is not s recoverable “loss™),
whzch relteraied ‘that Mavhall ‘was concerned with refining the contours of the injury component
of 2 PAA action: “[Mavhail] interpreted the above section and determnined that appellant muss
suffer 2 loss as & result of the stamiory vielation before recovery is allowed.” Id at 275.

'8 T¢ is well settded that “Julnless the context indicates otherwise, words or phrsses ina
provision that were used in a prior act pertaining to the same subject matter will be construed in
the same senss. . . . The same ruls bas been applied even where the langliags is only substantially

similar,” 2B Sutherlend Smtutory Constnuerion, §51.02 (5th ed.)

Sirnilarly, siatutes relaring to the same general subject mattey or having the same purpose
or object are considered 1o be in pari materia and are mterpreted in light of the comparable
provisions of the other, [d at £51.03; Good Boads Ped'n v Board of Canvassers, 333 Mich 352,
361, 53 NW2d 481 (1852).

The legislaiive intent to interpret similar phrases similarly is even siwongst whers the
statotes are enacted in the same legislative session, as were the MCPA (PA 1976, No. 331) 2nd
the MPAA (DA 1978, Mo, 445). 2B Sutherlend Statutory Constructon, suura 28 §51.03; Beed v

Secretary of State, 327 Mich 108, 113, 41 NWId 491 (1990); Good Roads Fed’n v Board of

Canvassers, supra, 333 Mich at 381-82,
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of fraud. Id a1 182-183. But under MCPA $11(2), it is clear that even 2 Aon-consumer Who

suffers loss from a false or deceptive advertisernent, even if she did not “rely” on it, may sue for

ing, 764 T Supp-1223 (ED Mich, 1990) {orthopedic

damages. Janda v Riley-Megps Industr
surgeon could sue baseball bases manufacturer and distributor who ran advertisement creating a

false impression that the surgeon sndorsed the product); Johp Labatt Lad v Molson Breweries, 853

F Supp 965, 970 @D‘ Mich, 1994) (z “person” that was a sompeatitor, net A consumer relying on
defendant’s advertiserments, could sue under the MCFA becausé ::“nothing in the zext of the stamte
suggests an imention on the part of the legislaturs” to limit to consumers the right of action
created under the MCPA™ (emphasis added)). Indeed, the plaintiffs in both Jands 4nd John
Labatt, as the parties possessing the information sbout the false or misleading nature of the
advertisements in question, cleariy did not rely on and wers nor misled by the ads,

Similarly, as “persons” that suffered loss as a result of the tobaceo industry’s violation of
the MPAA, the Fands may bring an action uader MPAA §10. ‘The trial court’s restriction of such
actions io persons who “rely” om a defendant’s false advertisement -- i.e., consumers - {s found
nowhere in the statutory text; is unsupported by a single case; 15 inconsistent with Mavhall;
w‘:oia'tes well-seitled principles of stanwory comstruction; is confrary io judicial decisions
interpreting the parallel provisions of the MCPA; and contravenes the remedial purposs of the
MPAA.

Tinally, even if “reliance” were required hers, the Tunds sufficlently allege it. The wial
cougt 7zjecied Dafendants’ contention that the Funds’ faud and miszepresentation common law
claims do not sufficiently allege justifizbie Tﬁﬁaﬂce-,v holding that 1349 of the complaint 4id
sufficientdy allese jusiifable relianee. (Tr: 61-82) For smmple, the Funds “rslied” by not sooner

iolementing smoking cessation programs, Paragraph 373 meorporates 1349 tnio Count VI
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(Violation of MPAA). Thersfore, the “justifiable refiance” sufficiently alleged to suppﬁi‘t the
Fund’s common law fraud and misrepresentation claime was alse afleged by the Funds with
respect to the false advertising claim under the MPAA,
V. THE TORT OF INTENTIONAL BREACH OF A SPECIAL DUTY SHOULD

BE RECOGNIZED TN MICHIGARN,

Count IV of the complaint alleges that Defendants intentionally failed o perform a special
duty, assumed by Defendants through their promises and statements since the eafly 1930%s.
(19342-350, 352) The trial court rejected this claim on the ground that it doubted the very
¢xistence of auch a cause of action (Tv; 62), which is 2 quesiion of first impression in Michigan.

Michigan law, however, permits recovery for economic Josses, despite the lack of any
physical harm (or harm to chattel) for the intentional torz of fFraud in the inducement, Huron Teol

ices. Tnc, 209 Mich App 365, 532 NW2d 541

(1994). The Hurop court, in reaching its decision to permit economic recovery for fraud, noted
that “the emerging trend is clearly toward creating an exception to the economic loss doctrine for
2 select group of intentional forts.” Id at 370. Seee.g., San Francisco v Philip Motris. Inc, 957
F Supp 1130, 114243 (0D Cal, 1597) (recogmizing that the defendants could be held liabie for
“purely economic loss” based on the plaintiffs’ pisading of intentional breach of an assumed
duiy); Minnesota v Philip Mords. Ine, 351 NW2d 490 (Mimm, 1996} (holding that the fact that
piaintiffs sought recovery for economic rather than physical harm did not defeat platnniffs’ canse

Telephone

of aciion for breach of &n assumed duty), Northern Sta
& Telegrapy Corp, 33C FSupp 108 (D Mimm, 1582) (faud in the mnducement and
misrepeessniation); Intevstate Securities Corp v Hayes Com, 520 F2d 789, 778 nll (TA 11, 19%1)
(defamation); Moorman Mis Co v Nag’l Tagk Co, 91 14 24 89, 433 IEId 443 (1982) (inrenrional

3%
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“hicago, 180 TH App 3d 967, 536 NE2d

misrepresentation); Werblood v Columbia College
1134 (1987); Santueci Constr Co v Baxter & Woodrn

(1987} (intenrional interference with coniractual relations). .

Jnc, 151 Tl App 3d 547, 502 NE2d 1134

The paucity of reported cases or historical context for the tort of Intentional breach of
special duty is hardly surprising given the nnique factual scenario under which such 2 tort would
arise. Here, Defendants undertook a special duiy by affirmatively assuring the public, inchuding
the Funds, that they would disclose all material facts about tobacco use, health and addiciion. ({§
104-107, 120, 122, 256-266, 344-345)

That pledge may have been = ifraud and misrepresentationt from the outset — the nsual case,
in which suit on thoss torts would provide a remedy. Or, alternatively, the pledge may have been
a gennine undertaking by Defendm of a speeial duty which subsequently was intentionally
breached. Either way, the Funds were injured as a result of the conduct, and they are entitled to
plead relief in the alternative.

The infentional breach of a special duty would indeed be 5 rare tort, albeit 2 particularly
egregious one. Since Michigan law recognizes a negligent breach of a special duty, Swmith v

0, 410 Mich 685, 711-12, 303 NW2d 702 (1981); Kuass v [oliet. Tne, 231

Mich App 661 (February 2, 1996}, no pringipled reason exists for fafling lo recognize the greater
wrong of an infentional breach. Consistent with Huron, sconomic recovery should be permitted
for this wrong.
CONMCLUSION
This lawsult represents an effort by the Tunds to recover damages for the costiy
wrongdoing committed by Defendents during decades of shifting to health care payors the costs

inflicted by smoking-related illnesses.
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The trial court’s dismissal of the case amounts o a finding ;'.’a;at the Funds’ claiuis wWare s0
clearly unenforteable as a matter of law that no factual development conld possibly justify a right
1o recover, MCR Z.116(C)(8). Thar was clearly error. Even the trial court expressed doubt
whether its ruling was correct. Under the applicable standards, the Funds® claims satisfy
prozimate causation and all other legal requirements.

RELIEF REQUESTED

For the reasons articulated above, the trial court’s distnissal of the Funds’ catses of action

should be reversed and the Fuads® clzims should be retnstated.
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